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In mid 1990s, the idea of creating an artificial island from an existing lagoon
and transforming it into a futuristic urban city which would accommodate
the excessive population of the central region was born. And the Hulhulé-

Farukolhufushi region became the crux of this ambitious vision.

The Phase | of Hulhumalé reclamation, consisting of 188 hectares, began on
16th October 1997 and was completed by June 2002. Primary developments
in terms of the required physical and social infrastructure and residential

developments were completed in 2004.

The first settlement of Hulhumalé was officially inaugurated on the 12th of

May 2004 with a resident population of just over 1,000.

O I I r ;t O ry At the end of 2013, Hulhumalé Phase | has reached a population of 30,000,

which is the halfway mark of the target population of 80,000 to be achieved
at the culmination of Phase | by the year 2020. With this in mind Phase Il of
Hulhumalé, consisting of 240 hectares, was launched in late 2014, catering to

a total population of 240,000.

The initial vision of Hulhumalé has broadened to accommodate the growth of

Hulhumalé and now envisions the establishment of higher standards in the
quality of living in the Maldives. Hulhumalé Phase | and Il will be a harmonious
combination of residential, commercial and industrial components acting
as a catalyst to entice broad based investments in the fields of commerce,
education, health, recreation, tourism, fisheries and a number of other related

areas by both foreign and local parties.

Hulhumalé Youth City, the city of hope.




Annual Report 2015

Housing Development Corporation Ltd. (HDC) is a 100% state owned
enterprise formed by a presidential decree in 2009. The organization was
initially established as Hulhumalé Development Unit in 2001 with the
mandate of undertaking the Hulhumalé development project. The unit was

later corporatized into Hulhumalé Development Corporation Ltd in 2005.
HDC has three major roles in fostering the development of Hulhumalé

Firstly, it acts as a master developer, delivering the vision, inspiration and

imagination of the projectin a manner that is feasible and commercially viable.

Secondly, HDC is a builder, investing in the infrastructure necessary for
quality living and business prosperity. These include the development of

roads, landscaping, and ensuring that basic utilities as well as other essential

O I I r ( O | I l p a l Iy services are available for investors and residents.

Lastly, HDC acts as regulator, overseeing detailed planning, architectural

guidelines and building regulations.

HDC deals with the lease and sale of land as well as developed property

in Hulhumalé. The company focuses on four broad areas of development:

residential, light industrial, hospitality and commercial.




Our Team

As we develop Hulhumalé into a unique island
city, encompassing of various opportunities
for youth and citizens of the city, it's our
goal to attract, develop, engage and retain a
dynamic and talented workforce to drive such
a transformational change. We believe that
developing a capable workforce able to adapt
to the changing business environments is the
key for success. We value our employees as
the mostvaluable resource. Itis for thisreason
we offer one of the best working conditions
and compensation to our employees to value

them and to reward them accordingly.

As such, company's salary structure was
revised to make HDC compensation
packages more attractive and ensure we get
the most qualified and talented candidates
for our vacancies. The salary review was
also accompanied with several favorable
changes to employment contract terms such
as elimination of salary deduction during the
probationary period and changes to leave
entitlements. We saw a positive boost to

employee morale due to these changes.

Similar to previous years, our training and
development function continued their work
on the areas of employee development

and engagement. Several short term

trainings along with overseas professional

development trainings for the executives
were also provided during the year for them
to upgrade themselves and prepare them to

face the challenges at work environment.
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During the year several works and exercises
were conducted to streamline organizational
effectiveness through series of department
structure revisions and functional structure
revisions. Further standard operating
procedures for all the key processes of the
organization is identified and documented in
accordance with ISO 9001 standard as a step
towards achieving operational excellence

and streamlining operations.

Our culture is performance oriented and
our jobs are demanding giving ample
opportunities for the employees to grow and
developthemselvestobemorecompetentand
ready for the future. However, we understand
the need to provide our employees time and
facilities to refresh their mind away from
work. It's where our recreational club (Club
HDC) kicks in to provide employees with
countless opportunities for recreational and
fun-filled activities planned throughout the
year. These activities ranges from picnic trips,

fishing trips, sport tournaments etc.

In addition to club activities, several staff
engagement and team building events
were coordinated by the human resource
department during the year. One of the
most memorable such event was the staff
annual event hosted to appreciate and value
the outstanding performers and the most

promising performer of the year.




Mr. Usamath Ismail (Acting Chairman / Board Director)

Mr. Usamath Ismail was appointed to the Board of Directors of HDC
on the 06th of January 2014. Mr. Usamath Ismail currently works in the
capacity of Director at Keystone International Pvt. Ltd. He has 7 years
of experience working in the Government sector including Selected
Island Development Unit and Ministry of Planning for World Bank
Finance developments. He spent his early career in the construction
and urban development sector and has worked in various positions in
both local and international companies including the UK. Mr. Usamath
Ismail holds a Bachelor of Science (Hons.) in Quantity Surveying, PMC,
RICS from the University of Greenwich, London and certifications in

Procurement and Network Administration.

Mr. Ahmed Ali Habeeb (Board Director)

Mr. Ahmed Ali Habeeb was appointed to the Board of Directors of HDC
on the 06th of May 2012. Mr. Ahmed Ali Habeeb currently works in
the capacity of Management Accountant at Apollo Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ahmed Ali Habeeb spent his career in the Finance sector and is
an internationally recognized professional in the field of Management
& Finance, owning the membership titles ACMA (Associate Chartered
Management Accountant of CIMA, UK) and CGMA (Chartered Global
Management Accountant of AICPA, USA). Mr. Ahmed Ali Habeeb has an

academic background in Management Accounting.

Mr. Mohamed Saiman (Board Director / Managing Director)

Mr Mohamed Saiman commenced his tenure at Housing Development
Corporation as the Deputy Managing Director in January 2014 at a time when
Hulhumalé was in need of great transformations. The change in the national

agenda that made the city a priority, propelled changes in HDC.

As the corporation leading the development, Mr Saiman was at the forefront
and pioneered the transformation of the core management functions and
strategic plans of the company. He led the modifications to the Masterplan to
meet the development vision of the futuristic Hulhumalé, in respect to both
Phase | and Phase Il. He soon moved up the rank to the post of Managing
Director in March 2015, which allowed him to implement his innovative

approach to the Hulhumalé development project.

Mr Saiman represented UNDP Maldives in Modernization and Reform of
Public Administration prior to joining HDC. He has vast experience in the
Maldives Tourism and Hospitality Industry as a training and management
consultant in both the corporate and education sector. Mr Saiman holds a
Master's Degree in Business Administration from University of Newcastle,
Australia and a Bachelor's Degree in Tourism and Hospitality Management
from University of Sunderland, UK. He is also a graduate of the international

school SHATEC in Singapore.

Mr. Abdul Samad Abdul Rahman (Board Director)

Mr. Abdul Samad Abdul Rahman was appointed to the Board of
Directors of HDC on the 06th of January 2014. Mr. Abdul Samad Abdul
Rahman currently works in the capacity of Deputy Director General
at The National Drug Agency (NDA). He spent his early career in the
Health sector and has 30 year experience working in various positions
in government since 1987 including Deputy Director General in many
sections at the Ministry of Health. Mr. Abdul Samad Abdul Rahman
holds a Graduate Diploma in Management from AVID College and other
certifications in Management and Health and is currently pursuing his

Masters in Business Administration.



Mr. Mohamed Shahid

Deputy Managing Director

Mr. Mohamed Shahid holds a Masters of Business Administration from
University of Nottingham, Malaysia. He obtained his Bachelor's Degree in
Business Management from Griffith University, Australia.

Prior to his career at HDC, he served as the Assistant Sales and Marketing
Manager at Malé Aerated Water Company. He joined HDC as a Senior
Administrative Officer and moved up the ranks to the position of Deputy

Managing Director in 2012.

Ms. Nashwa Abdulla

Director, Business Development, Sales and Marketing

Ms. Nashwa Abdulla joined HDC in February 2015 as the Director of
Business Development, Sales and Marketing, one of its biggest and most
diverse departments. She handles some of HDC's core functions including
investment management, evaluation of business proposals as well as the
sales of land and properties. Ms. Nashwa holds a Master's Degree in Public
Administration from the prestigious Lee Kuan Yew School of Public Policy,
National University of Singapore. She obtained her Bachelor's in Business
Management and Marketing, awarded by Charles Sturt University. Prior
to joining HDC, she served the Government of Maldives for over 11 years.
She began her career at Ministry of Tourism and competently moved up
the ranks within civil service. She served as the Political Secretary for the
Minister at the Ministry of Construction and Public Infrastructure where
she was later appointed as the Deputy Director and shortly after, as the
Deputy Director at Ministry of Housing, Transport and Environment.
Under her directorship at HDC, she has successfully undertaken the
large scale promotion of HDC and Hulhumalé on both local and global

platforms.

Ms. Salfiyya Anwar

Director, Planning and Physical Development

Ms. Salfiyya holds a Master's of Arts Degree in Planning and Urban
Design from University of Lincoln. She holds a double Bachelor's degree
in Applied Science Architectural Science from Curtin University, Australia
and in Architecture from Robert Gordon University.

Soon after her academic endevours, she joined HDC in 2004 as a planning
officer. She gave her insight to the formulation of Hulhumalé development
master plan. She moved up the ranks to the Director of Planning and

Physical Development in 2014.

Mr. Nawaz Shaugee

Director, Project Management and Development

Prior to commencing his tenure as the Director of Project Management
and Development at HDC in 2015, Mr. Nawaz Shaugee served in the
Maldives National Defence Force (MNDF) for over 10 years. Shortly after
graduating from Araullo University, Philippines with a Bachelors in Civil
Engineering, Mr. Nawaz started his career at MNDF as a Civil Engineer.
Possessing great aptitude Mr. Nawaz moved up their military ranks,
leading departments such as Project Implementation, Post Construction,
Structural Design and Quantity Surveying and Construction. He was also
appointed as a Commander of Military Engineering Services and Head of
Directorate for Policy, Planning and Resource Management. During his
time at MNDF, Mr. Nawaz built an impressive professional background,
participating in courses and seminars overseas and working on large

scale projects throughout the Maldives.

Mr. Hassan Shafeeq

Director, Legal Affairs

Prior to joining HDC, his long service in the field of law includes working
in numerous government positions starting from the position of Legal
Officer in Ministry of Justice. His notable career achievements include
working as a lawyer and serving as the senior Judge in the civil court of
Maldives under the Ministry of Justice. He joined HDC in 2004 as a legal
officer and became the Director of Legal Affairs section in 2010.

Mr Shafeeq holds a Bachelor's Degree in Law from Al-Fathih University,

Libya.



Mr. Ali Shareef

Director, Accounting and Finance

Mr. Ali Shareef served in the civil service for over 10 years, where he
dedicated a great deal of his career to working at the Ministry of Finance
and Treasury in the Maldives. At the Ministry, he worked at the Public
Enterprises, Monitoring and Evaluation Board (PEMEB) and competently
moved up the civil service ranks ultimately becoming the Technical
Advisor to the Minister.

Preceding his tenure at HDC, Mr. Ali was the Chief Financial Officer at
Housing Development Finance Corporation (HDFC). Mr. Ali joined as
Director of Finance of HDC in 2015. He is presently a Board Member
of Maldives Pension Administrative Office as well. Mr. Ali obtained his
Bachelors in Accounting awarded by the University of Hertfordshire, UK.
He is also a member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

(ACCA, UK) and has completed CFA level 1.

Ms.Fathimath Nihaya

Corporate Affairs, Administration and ICT

Ms. Fathimath Nihaya has over 16 years of management experience.
Her career began at the Ministry of Home Affairs. Ms. Nihaya obtained
her Bachelor's Degree in Commerce in 2000, majoring in Accounting and
Finance from Griffith University, Australia. Ms. Nihaya joined HDC in the
year 2005, as a Senior Officer in Finance Department and soon obtained
the Assistant Director position of Finance.

During this time, she was also leading the procurement functions of HDC
and worked in various functions such as reporting, budget formulation
and overseeing accounts payable function of the corporation, as well as
in the devising of procurement strategies. In the year 2009, Ms. Nihaya
competently moved up the corporation ranks and became the Director
directly overseeing the overall management of Administration, Human
Resources, and Procurement and ICT functions of the corporation. Since
2014, she has been the Director of Corporate Affairs, Administration and

ICT at HDC.

Mr. Ahmed Mirshan

Director, Human Resources and Personnel Management

Mr. Ahmed Mirshan joined HDC in 2014, as the head of Human Resources
and Personnel Management department. Prior to his work at HDC, he
notable career includes his service in the Civil Service Commission of
Maldives and his consultancy work as the lead local Consultant of the
Conflict Resolution Dialogue at UNDP Maldives.

His academic qualifications include Bachelor of Arts Degree in the
Staffordshire University of UK, Diploma in Human Resource Management,
ABE UK, obtained from MAPS Institute of Maldives, and Practitioner’s
Diploma in Human Resource Management, ABE UK completed at Clique

College Maldives.

Mr. Ibrahim Khaleel Abdulla

Municipal Administration, Civil and Public Infrastructure

Mr. Abdulla is a long serving member of the government prior to joining
HDC. Most of his contributions in the government include his work in the
health sector. He served as the post of Director General of Hulhumalé
Hospital from 2008 to 2010. He was also a Member of the Parliament
from 2004-2008.

He joined HDC as the Director for Municipal Administration in 2014.



Our Strategic
Pillars

Diversify development and
investment portfolio
Strategic planning for
continuous improvement
Creating a healthy
investment climate and
proactive promotion of
investment opportunities

Improving interdepartmental
coordination, organizational
alignment and system
integration

Enhancing organizational
learning and knowledge
management

e Strengthening connectivity
and enhancing local and
international accessibility

¢ Incorporating innovation,
technology and ICT in all
types of developments

e Establishing coordination
mechanism with
stakeholders and
coordinated services
planning

e Enhancing customer
relationship management

e Promoting green and
environmentally friendly
features in all developments



Our
Values

We transform the style of living, we are agile
and we continuously transform and respond

to changes in the business environment.

We are responsible and we carry out
our duties with the highest level of

professionalism.

We consistently strive to provide superior

value to our stakeholders.

We strive to achieve harmony throughout
our developments and in our business

culture.

We create value by implementing new ideas/

methods.

We are visionary, we have passion for
growth and consistent improvement for a

brighter future.

“We are visionary, we have
passion for growth and
consistent improvement for a
brighter future.”

- ——
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Housing Developments
HDC being mandated with the development of Hulhumalé and real estate throughout the Maldives

looks into many avenues to develop the Housing Sector. As such, the company provides support to

the Ministry of Housing in its endeavors to develop Social Housing Projects. HDC goes on to contribute

to the market by opening up opportunities for local investors to enter the Real Estate Market through
projects such as the Local Developer Project and Apartment Complex Project. These projects are aimed
to grow the Real Estate Sector within the Maldives and to provide Commercial Housing opportunities

for the population. Aside from locals HDC also opens up opportunities to the international market as
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In the development of Hulhumalé, HDC puts an emphasis on
balancing developments by introducing adequate amounts of
commercial and other services as required by the residents
and visitors. Some of these commercial spaces are aimed
at the budding entrepreneurs by providing platforms to
venture into businesses in the form of commercial units.
Aside from commercial units HDC offers a variety of
commercial developments such office spaces, malls, hotels

and convention centers.

Hulhumalé in its venture to make it a sustainable development
looks into avenues to develop industries and create job
opportunities within the city. With this aim Hulhumalé has
an Industrial zone dedicated for developments such as fish
processing factories, warehousing units, workshops and
batching plants. The industrial zone also plays a major role
in contributing to the every growing housing, commercial and

infrastructure developments in Hulhumalé.

25



Housing Development Corporation

Infrastructure

As every growing city needs the necessary infrastructure

to thrive HDC puts a special emphasis on infrastructure I

i RIS AT e—

developments which are a basic necessity of the community
such as water, electricity, mosques, hospitals and schools.
HDC also develops infrastructure which contribute to
harmonious and consonant communities such as parks and
open spaces along with developments which add value to the

island such as the Tree Top Hospital.
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Tourism Related

As Tourism has always been one of the major industries in the
Maldives and as urban tourism has become an uprising trend,
HDC looks into ways to satisfy the needs of the tourist market
by dedicating developments and areas specifically to cater
for the international market without infringing on the needs
of the existing population. Such developments include the
Tourist Island Development, Hotels and convention centers.
HDC aims to develop the tourist market to new heights with
its upcoming projects such as the Yacht Marina and Cruise

Terminal.
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Business Review

Regular visitors to Hulhumalé over the past few years will have noticed the gradual transformation of the

once barren land. What was once a lagoon transformed into an empty reclaimed area has come a long way

in terms of development in housing, commercial, industrial, infrastructure and tourism. This mega project is

one of a kind in the Maldives and is connected with many hopes of the population.

The year 2015 has seen a population growth totaling to 34,888 residents. The following chart depicts the

growth in population up to date.

The gradual increase in population directly reflect the
development of the Housing Sector in Hulhumalé. As
such in the year 2015 HDC has signed with 2 major
developers to develop and sell over 560 Housing Units.
The physical construction of Amin Avenue and 40
row-houses targeted to the mid-market were initiated

during the year.

To support the growing population of Hulhumalé

HDC has engaged parties for the development of the
commercial and infrastructure developments, such as,
signing an agreement with Crown Holdings to develop
a Multi - Specialist Hospital. Also HDC has awarded to
develop the Youth Park, Beach Café, Quarantine Facility,
Fuel Shed and has signed an agreement with Red Wave,
a well-known supermarket chain in the Maldives, to

operate the commercial block in Neighborhood 3.

In the development of infrastructure development

HDC has initiated two projects, covering the main road
network and the Shore Protection of Phase 2 as two
separate projects. The Developments are projected to be

completed within the next two years.

Aside from announcing and advertising projects both
in the local and international market HDC has played
an active role in seeking investors for its projects. Some

notable events that HDC has marketed it products at are

Population Growth 2010-2015
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the Maldives Investment Forum 2015 and the South Asia

Expo held in Kunming, China.

Overall the Business of HDC has progressed at a constant
rate from 2014 and has a lot of projects related to the
Tourism sector along with Housing and commercial

developments in the pipeline for 2016.

HDC also has a property management section which
manages and maintains over 1900 Housing Flats, 6
Commercial Developments and Industrial Garage Units
along with all vacant and non-vacant lands in Hulhumalé.

During the year 2015 Hulhumalé has become home to a

range of Shops which has created a range of goods targeted

at the residents and office workers.

Business
Performance

This section provides the summary details
of some of the major projects undertaken
by HDC during the year 2015
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Hulhumalé Mini
Mall Project
Providing for the shopping
needs of the community
under one roof. The Mini
Mall consists of Café’s, Bank,
Salons, Shop Units and some

health services.

32

N3 Commercial Block
Project

A commercial building targeted for the needs
of the Neighborhood 3 community, consists of

2 Story building including 8 commercial units

and a café at first floor.

Annual Report 2015
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Completed Major Infrastructure Projects

Barbeque Area
The development of barbeque area, a bicycle

track & a walkway of 126m length and a tuck

shop has been completed in 2015.

34

Neighborhood 3 School
A 6 storey School Building in Neighborhood

3 was completed in 2015. The school has the

capacity of 44 classrooms.

Annual Report 2015
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Phase One of
Central Park

The Phase | of the Central
Park in Hulhumalé was
completed in the year 2015.
Phase | consists one quarter
of the whole park and green

area.

36
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Phase 2 Reclamation

With the Phase 1 of Hulhumalé nearly reaching the
population targets set out, the company initiated and
completed the reclamation of the second phase of

Hulhumalé.
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Major Projects initiated within the year

Development of
Shore Protection
in Phase 2

The protection work includes
construction of armor

rock revetment and sand
haulage of Hulhumalé Phase
Il offshore islands (Yacht

Marina and Cruise Terminal).

38

Development of
Community Centre in
Neighborhood 1

The development caters to the growing
population of Hulhumalé with services

and facilities such as badminton courts,
cinema, gym, counselling facilities, café

and communal spaces. It is expected to be

completed within the next year.
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Stakeholder Management
The Municipal function is responsible to
establish coordination mechanisms with
stakeholders in order to develop related
infrastructure and services in a coordinated
manner. This function ensures that the base
needs of the population are met without
any delays. The function also ensures that
the services that are required by developers
are available in an efficient and coherent
manner. In order to achieve this aim the
Municipal function has had various meetings
throughout the year 2015 with the service
providers and stakeholders to discuss

their requirements, difficulties faced and

suggestions.

Waste Management

The Municipal function was tasked with
the development of a proposal for a
sustainable waste management method to
be implemented in Hulhumalé. To this end
in the year 2015, extensive research was
carried out on the most sustainable and
efficient waste management methods. The
identification of garbage disposal options,
preparation of a waste management plan
addressing, reuse, reduce and recycle along
with cost comparisons with the existing
waste disposal methods were also carried
out within the year and a proposal was

formulated on the way forward.

Building Maintenance
services

HDC has a Building Management unit that
provides maintenance services for the
residential flats, commercial buildings,
industrial garage units, parks and HDC
premises. As part of our continuous
improvement in services, we acquired
additional quality tools such as bricklaying
machine to further enhance our
maintenance management. Some of the
works carried out in the year are the paving
of road and the complete installation of light

poles at proposed areas.

Cleaning, Landscaping and
greenery

Providing a clean environment to the visitors
and residents of Hulhumalé is one of the
focus areas of the municipality services

to ensure a quality living is accessible. An
in-house labor force is dedicated for this
purpose in ensuring that roads are well
maintained. In order to create an attractive
urban city, landscaping and greenery plays

a pivotal role. The city is beautified with
“Fithuronu”, “Dhugethi” and “Golden Ficus”.
During the year the Central Park Phase 1
landscaping was completed, the propagation
of plants required for Phase 2 was initiated,
Park infront of the HDC Main office Building
was developed, the development of a
Malaysian Coconut Palm Nursery were
carried out along with general park and
hedge maintenance and pruning of trees

throughout Hulhumalé.

Annual Report 2015
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Revenue 261,762,687 366,048,862 890,137,631 479,697,205 148,043,909
Sale of properties 215,469,740 307,879,007 821,894,678 404,315,743 66,468,882
Rental income 46,292,947 58,169,855 68,242,953 75,381,462 81,575,027
Cost of sales (48,416,844) (34,150,250) (770,019,279) (348,567,069) (52,488,745)
Gross profit 213,345,843 331,898,612 120,118,352 13v1,130,136 95,555,164
Other operating income 7,952,681 2,745,188 6,930,349 8,671,007 21,385,742
Administrative Expenses (53,380,331) (59,718,345) (74,572,940) (119,568,085) (134,944,109)
Maintenance Expenses (5,709,882) (9,834,498) (8,021,219) (17,002,788) (15,486,443)
Selling & Distribution Costs (406,911) (613,968) (1,341,865) (3,516,204) (4,997,931)
Other operating expenses
Income from Operating Activities (PBIT) 161,801,400 264,476,989 43,112,677 (285,934) (38,487,577)
Finance Income on Trade Receivable 69,206,529 95,182,670 103,764,378 142,841,673 151,525,354
Finance Cost (Interest) (31,384,956) (29,221,691) (28,940,203) (25,523,066) (33,258,187)
Income from Operating Activities with net Finance Income 199,622,973 330,437,968 117,936,852 117,032,673 79,779,590
Other finance income (on fixed deposits) 12,410,969 14,705,146 13,815,877 50,000 250,000
Interest on investment held to maturity 4,200
Exchange gain / loss
Share of profit from JV 3,670,325 1,742,940 (1,250,697) 446,844
Profit Before Tax 212,033,942 348,813,439 133,495,669 115,836,176 80,476,434
Tax (9,926,554) (52,171,605) (20,547,515) (21,625,823) (9,638,125)
Profit for the year (PAT) 202,107,388 296,641,834 112,948,154 94,210,353 70,838,309
Earning Per Share 4.57 6.71 2.56 213 1.60
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Non-Current Assets 3,389,512,075 3,480,376,640 2,051,197,465 2,380,798,269 2,796,498,786
Property, Plant and Equipment 2,568,171,120 2,561,653,273 36,013,612 38,815,674 72,846,977
Investment Properties 32,276,728 36,795,500 416,636,771 498,461,505 980,940,590
Intangible Assets 2,245,442
Investment available for sale 1,125,000 1,000,000 950,000 1,000,000 1,250,000
Investment held to maturity 500,000 500,000
Investments in JVs 13,124,782 16,795,107 12,996,047 11,745,350 12,022,650
Trade and Other Receivables 774,052,020 863,164,235 1,583,562,960 1,823,736,412 1,715,346,619
Deferred Tax Asset 762,425 968,525 1,038,075 6,539,328 11,346,508
Current Assets 749,906,062 878,343,969 1,375,927,230 1,013,267,686 1,499,863,047
Inventories 298,356,274 177,636,679 605,517,876 196,486,298 907,586,196
Trade and Other Receivables 103,213,749 275,126,332 315,834,892 304,388,642 376,993,389
Investment Held to Maturity
Amounts Due from Related Parties 19,847,004 128,970,443 136,272,951 131,186,448 80,405,030
Cash and Cash Equivalents 328,489,035 296,610,515 318,301,511 381,206,298 134,878,432
TOTAL ASSETS 4,139,418,137 4,358,720,609 3,427,124,695 3,394,065,955 4,296,361,833
Authorised Capital 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000
Equity 3,341,092,200 3,542,851,286 2,280,992,418 2,356,555,040 2,486,899,215
Share Capital 442,000,000 442,000,000 442,000,000 442,000,000 442,000,000
Share Premium 61,129,607 61,129,607 61,129,607.00 61,129,607.00 61,129,607.00
Revaluation Reserve 2,149,630,435 2,149,630,435 - - -
Fair Value Reserve 125,000 - (50,000.00) - 250,000.00
Share Application Pending for allocation | - - 774,873,413.00 | 778,329,882.00 | 817,391,671.00
Retained Earnings 688,207,158 890,091,244
1,003,039,398.00 | 1,075,095,551.00 | 1,166,127,937.00
Non Current Liability 583,226,239 592,784,228 637,148,427 625,264,374 1,319,454,058
Loans and Borrowings 483,287,995 445,770,573 408,031,152 374,541,405 1,089,337,590
Deferred Income 23,021,608 22,099,721 102,257,963 134,454,504 115,792,367
Tax liability 3,914,275 4,843,786 5,525,620
Trade and Other Payables 73,002,361 120,070,148 121,333,692 116,268,465 114,324,101
Capital Employed (Equity + Debt) 3,824,380,195 3,988,621,859 2,689,023,570 2,731,096,445 3,576,236,805
Current Liability 215,099,698 223,085,095 508,983,850 412,246,541 490,008,560
Loans and Borrowings 34,893,454 36,676,903 37,738,425 39,812,317 33,806,441
Provisions 53,457,243 91,380,044 381,833,154 257,015,659 254,463,014
Trade and Other Payables 101,049,125 69,149,619 73,747,154 99,739,948 201,739,105
Amounts Due to Related Parties 25,699,876 25,878,529 15,665,117 15,678,617
Loans and Borrowings (CL +NCL) 518,181,449 482,447,476 445,769,577 414,353,722 1,123,144,031
Capital Employed (Equity + Debt+Def- 3,847,401,803 4,010,721,580 2,791,281,533 2,865,550,949 3,692,029,172
fered Income)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,139,418,137 4,358,720,609 3,427,124,695 3,394,065,955 4,296,361,833

47




48

Housing Development Corporation

Gross Profit

140
120
100

c

) 80
s 60
40
20

2013 2014 2015

Profit after Interest and Tax

120.00

Revenue Resources 2015

Finance Income @)

Other Income ()

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

(® Sales of Properties
(g Rental Income

Millions

100.00
94.16
80.00
70.84
60.00
40.00
20.00

2013 2014 2015

2013

2014

2015

Millions

Millions

500.00

400.00

300.00

200.00

100.00

1500.00

1000.00

500.00

NET Cash Flow

381.21

/\

318.30 312.40
2013 2014 2015
Total Liabilities
1134.56
1025.20
2013 2014 2015

Annual Report 2015

49






Housing Development Corporation

REVENUE AND PROFITS

The year 2015 was a successful year in term of achieving its
revenue targets set for the year. The company had achieved
annual revenue of MVR 148 Million with a net profit of MVR
70.8 million.

The net profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 shows
a decline compared to the year ended 31 December 2014
(331.6 million), due to fact that there was no sale of plots and
sale of property. The decrease is also due to number housing
projects falling in to the year 2015.

The major income source for the year was through finance
income and rental income. As at 31st December the company
recorded MVR 151.5 million from finance income and MVR

81.5 million from rental income.

Other incomes mainly include maintenance charge (income)
amounting to MVR 7.4 million and miscellaneous income

amounting to MVR 5.6 million.

Revenue (MVR in Millions)
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The operations of HDC had drastically increased with more
housing projects. As such, the scale of operations expanded
resulting in an increase in overhead compared to 2014.
Administrative expenses has increased by 10%, selling and

marketing expenses has increased by 56% compared to 2014.

The company has been giving Municipal service for the
residents of Hulhumalé at the very beginning on behalf of the
government and company had been investing a significant
amount to cater and improve the municipal services. It has
subsumed a notable amount of the company overheads.
In 2015 MVR 34.8 Million incurred which was 10% increase

compared to 2014.

Net finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2015
recorded at MVR 33.2 million which was a 23% increase
compared to 2014. Another notable fact is that the company
took USD 30 million as a loan from BOC for the land

reclamation of Hulhumalé Phase two.

NET Profit (MVR in Millions)
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INVESTMENTS

The company has made investments in capital

Gross Profit (MVR in Millions)

Annual Report 2015

assets during the year amounting to MVR 851.8 So0

million which is MVR 353.4 million (71%) increase 300

331.90

compared to 2014. Major investments conducted
250

were the dredging and coastal protection work of

. 200 ——
land in phase Il. The company had borrowed from
financial institution to finance the planned capital 150

investments during the year. 100

50

EQUITY AND DEBTS

120.12 i

2011
The Company had borrowed MVR 459.1 million

from Bank of Ceylon for reclamation of land in
Phase Il. The Company also repaid MVR 56.7
million short-term and long-term loans, and paid
MVR 22.3 million as interest expenses over the

outstanding loans.

Earnings Per Share
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The role of the Board of Directors is to ensure the
corporation’s prosperity by collectively directing the
Corporation’s affairs, whilst meeting the appropriate
interests of its shareholders and stakeholders. In
addition to determining the Corporation’s systems
and policies of management and governance, their
role lies in establishing the vision, mission and
values of the Corporation; setting business strategies
and structure; work delegation to management;

and exercise accountability to shareholders and
responsibility to the stakeholders of the Corporation.
The Board of Directors of the Corporation is
appointed by the government of Maldives, the 100%
shareholder of Housing Development Corporation.
The members who served the Board of Directors of
the Corporation during the year were;

e  Mr. Mohamed Aseel Ahmed (Chairman)

¢ Mr. Mohamed Saiman (Managing Director)

e  Mr. Abdul Samad Abdul Rahman

e Mr. Ahmed Ali Habeeb

e  Mr. Usamath Ismail

On 19th February 2015, Mr. Suhail Ahmed

(Managing Director) resigned from his post as
Managing Director. On the 26th of February 2015,

Mr. Mohamed Saiman was appointed as the new
Managing Director of the Corporation.

On 16th November 2015, Mr. Mohamed Aseel
Ahmed (Chairman) was dismissed from the Board of
Directors. In the absence of the Chairman, the board
members voted for Mr. Usamath Ismail to act in the
capacity of the Chairman during meetings until a time
where the Government appoints an official Chairman.
The year ended with Mr. Usamath Ismail as the acting
Chairman of the Board.

The Board of Directors officially met 20 (twenty)
times throughout the year 2015, and executed 18

(Eighteen) board resolutions during the year 2015.

The Board is assisted by the EXCOM (executive committee) of the
Corporation, to ensure that the operations of the Corporation are properly
implemented. During the year 2015, the EXCOM of the Corporation was

served by the following members;

1. Suhail Ahmed

2. Mr. Mohamed Saiman
3. Mr. Mohamed Shahid
4, Mr. Ali Shareef

5. Mrs. Fathimath Nihaya
6. Mr. Hassan Shafeeq

7. Ms. Salfiyya Anwar

8. Mr. Ahmed Mirshan

9. Mr. Nawaz Shaugee
10. Mr. Ibrahim Khaleel Abdulla
11. Mrs. Nashwa Abdulla

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code of Capital
Market Development Authority (CG Code); the CGA and has followed
international best practices on governance.

The relevant accounting standards were considered and followed through in
the preparation of the Company’'s Annual Accounts with proper explanations
relating to material departures, proper and sufficient care has been given for
the maintenance of adequate records in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act of the Republic of Maldives (Law no. 10/96), the financial
Statements were prepared on going-concern basis

The Board of Directors has 03 sub-committees advising the board on matter
related to the committees as outlined in the charter for committees as

approved by the Board. The 03 committees are;

1. Audit Committee

a. Mr. Ahmed Ali Habeeb

b. Mr. Usamath Ismail

C. Mr. Abdul Samad Abdul Rahman
2. Remuneration Committee

a. Mr. Mohamed Aseel

b. Mr. Mohamed Saiman

Mr. Abdul Samad Abdul Rahman

3. Projects Committee
a. Mr. Usamath Ismail
b. Mr. Mohamed Aseel
C. Mr. Mohamed Saiman

During the year 2015, a total of 02 Audit Committee Meetings and 02

Remuneration Committee Meetings were held.
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In 2015, all the major events, celebrations and community engagement activities were conducted by
the Public Relations Committee formed within the corporation. The committee conducted programs to

raise awareness within the community as well.

The events held in the year 2015 were successful and garnered immense support from the community.

Many of the events were held in partnership with the community, other government entities and non-

profit organizations. Some of the notable events of 2015 include:
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4. Deeming the importance and need of providing donors for the
numerous blood transfusions in the country, a Blood Donation Camp
was organized by HDC in collaboration with Maldivian Thalassaemia
Society on 29 October 2015.

5. Organized by HDC, Youth Day Celebrations took place in
Hulhumalé colourfully in November 2015. The events organized
included soft opening of Central Park and Barbeque Area which went
on with a grand music show that garnered youth and community
engagement.
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AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT

'O THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HOUSING

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

Introduction

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of Housing Development Corporation
Limited (the “Company™), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st December
2015, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes exhibited on pages 4 to 34,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our andit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified audit opinion.

Auditor General®s Office | Ghaazee Building | Ameer Ahmed Magu | Male', Republic of Maldives
+960 332 3939 | infotdaudit.govany | www audit.gov.my
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

4.

In accordance with IAS 17 “Leases™ the operating lease rentals should be recognised on straight
line basis over the lease period or another systematic basis that is more representative of the patiem
of the Company's benefits from the asset. However, the Company recognise rental income based
on contractual cash flows which is not representative pattern herein determined by the Company
and we were unable to determine whether any adjustment might be required to the financial
statements as at and for the year ended 3 1st December 2015 in the absence of detailed calculation.

As disclosed in note 22.5.1 to the financial statements, the Government of Maldives (“GOM") has
transferred 1,000 housing units as per the agreement entered with the Company subject to certain
conditions to be fulfilled by the Company. However, the Company had recognised the value of the
housing units as Advance for Share Capital MVR 755,981,671/- after deducting the expenses to be
incurred by the Company on fulfilling the obligations and other related expenses.

According to the agreement, the transaction falls into the definition of a Government Grant as per
the International Accounting Standard 20 (“IAS 20") “Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance” and the Company shall recognise the Government Grant
and the related income in respect of the Housing units sold by the Company during the year. As a
result, the Government grant income of MVR 1,725,032/- has not been recognised for the year
ended 31st December 2015 (2014: MVR 225,706,717/-), deferred income has been understated by
MVR 20,467,661/- and advance for share capital is overstated by MVR 755,981,671/- as at 31st
December 2015, profit for the year ended has been understated by MVR 1,725,032/- and Retained
earnings as at 3 1st December 2015 have been understated by MVR 736,0606,605/-.

As disclosed in Note 3.5 to the financial statements, the Company has voluntarily changed its
accounting policy to measure investment properties at cost less depreciation and impairment loss
whereas no appropriate basis has been established by the Company on the change of the policy. As
per International Accounting Standard 40 (“lAS 40") “Investment Property™ it is highly unlikely
that a change from the Fair value model to the cost model will result in a more relevant presentation.

The Company has transferred the land to Investment Properties from Property, Plant and Equipment
during the year ended 3 1st December 2011 when the revalued amount of the land stood at MVR
2,375,955,099/-. As per the policy change to measure the Investment Properties at cost less
depreciation and impairment, the Company has derecognised the revaluation reserve of MVR
2,149,630,435/- during the year ended 3 1st December 2013, However, as per [AS 40, the value of
the land transferred to the Investment Properties should be considered as deemed cost of MVR
2,375,955,099/-. Therefore, the de- recognition of MVR 2,149,630,435/- is not in accordance with
IAS 40. As a result, Investment properties have been understated by MVR 2,149,630,435/- as at
31st December 2015 and revaluation reserve has been understated by the same amount as at 31st
December 2015.

As disclosed in the Note 8 & 18 to the financial statements, the Company has recorded finance
income from receivable of MVR 143,750,349/- and interest bearing receivable of MVR
1,878,297,455/- which includes accrued interest as at 31st December 2015. We were unable to
verify the completeness and accuracy of the interest income and accrued interest in the absence of
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence.

Auditor General’s Office | Ghaazee Building | Ameer Ahmed Magu | Male®, Republic of Maldives
+060 332 3939 | infofiaudit.zov.my | www audit.gov.my
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Qualified Opinion

9.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraphs, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Housing Development Corporation Limited as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

7" June 2017

Hassan Ziyath
Auditor General

Auditor General’s Office | Ghaazee Building | Ameer Ahmed Magu | Male', Republic of Maldives
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HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIST DECEMBER 2015

Maote
Revenue L
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit
Other Income 7
Adminisirative Expenscs
Maintenance Expenses
Selling and Marketing Expenses
Results from Operating Activities
Finance Income 5
Finance Costs 8
Met Finance Income
Share of Profit{Loss) of Investment in Joinl Yenlure 15.1
Profit Before Tax 9
Tax Expense 10
Profit for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income
Change in fair value of Investments Available-for-sale 16.1
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 11

Figures in brackets indicate deductions,

s 2014
MVR MYVER
148,043 909 479,697 205
(52,488,745)  (348,567,069)
95,555,164 131,130,136
21,385,742 9,241,840
116,940906 140,371,976
(134,944,109)  (121,467,991)
(15,486,443)  (17,002,788)
(4,997,931)  (2,187,131)
(38,487,577) (285,934)
151,525354 142,841,673
(33258,187)  (25,523,066)
18,267,167 117,31 E,El]__f
446,844 (1,250,697
80,226,434 115,781,976
(9,638,125)  (21,625,823)
70,588,309 94,156,153
250,000 50,000
70,838,309 94,206,153
1.60 2.13

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form an integral part of
the financial statements of the Company set out on page 8 to 34. The Repon of the Independent Auditors

is given in page | to 3.




JROMUSING DEVELCPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSETTON
AR AT JIST DECEMNBER 2015 s 204 PR
Nl MVR MV MV w - o em=a e =T B e [ ge|g 2=z |z
(Restated) {Restated) E, :’- o "_-D = g o -: z V:_- r:: : :w. :::‘ = o Ll B
=] .E [ = (=2 LT =] wi O =T | Wy 2 E) =] g Wi
2 gl=nE S= = =ollal a8 wale = |2 =
ASSETS = ?’. = 3 |& " alE :{1 L_i N o ‘g
Mon-Curreni Asseis i e = e 4
Property, Plant and Eguipment 12 SE017,398 IBKI5674 36,013,612 s )
Intangible Assets 13 2,919,810 . - i |52 8 2.8 CEIEIIRl & 2 |8 ALE
Investment Propertics 14 851,874,677 498,461,505 416,636,771 e °=_"p: ::_hﬁ ; 3 b = g |g| |2 g % % v
Investment in Joint Venture 15 12,192,194 11,745,350 12,996,047 g E ; ﬁ hl :"_': - i ol b : : 2 E ;
Investment Avoilable-For-Sake 16 1,250,000 1,00, W00 G50, 000 [ ‘S g = K 0 E ';.. i L 1:
Invesument Held w Matarity 17.1 500,000 500,000 - = & ! 3 o
Trade and Other Receivahles 185 1L715,346,61% |, 523,736,412  1,383,362,960 g = = o 1 il =5
Deferred Tax Asset 10.3 11,346,508 6,539,328 . = E el 8 « B i 1= voa ]l VB |8 o
Total Non-Current Assels 2,653,447,206 230,798,269  2,050,159,390 - 5% & A 2z E E ﬁ
-
Current Assels =
Inventories 19 462 A50,424 184 674 343 505512 04 s o et e al lei e e lal'h=
Trade and Other Receivables 1% 344,341,247 327,148,745 315,834,892 s = I = S L - - voa | 21E s
Investment Held to Maturily 17.1 2,868,414 - - ¢ R e e ﬁ ?.;% Al & e
Amounts Due from Belated Parties 20 55,946,087 108 426,345 136,272,951 E {'é C;' o+ 4 - i o8 o g || |=
Cash and Cash Fguivalents 21 312,399,005 381,206,298 318,301,511 i = ~ L L o~ b
Total Curreni Asscls LITE0N0177  1,001,455,731 1,365,921 558 w
Total Assels 3831458383 3.382.254,000  3,416,080,948 ~ - ] = &
g Exl 2 « 8 il e8] 2 e S
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES iEg & a al A &
w 2 o — - =
Equity E o D D o =3
Share Capital 22 442,000,000 442 000,000 442,000,000 & = =5 -
Share Premium 12 61129607 61,129,607 61,129,607 T 2 2l 2 g
Mdvance Tor Share Capital 21 B17,391,671 778,329 882 774,873,413 E = E E = = § =
Fair Value Reserve 250,000 - (50,0000 i ﬂ = o 3" E i ;‘
Retained Eamnings 1,146,185,071  1,075,506,762  1,003,540,600 3 T | F i
Total Equity 2,466,956,34%  2,357,056,251 2,281 493,629
Mon-Current Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 13.1 805,258,378 374,541,405 408,031,152
Deferred Income 24 121,116,680 134,454,504 102,257 %63
Deferred Tax Liability 10.2 - - 4 487 545 & F=
Trade and Other Payables 26.1 100,227 584 116,268,465 121,333 692 E— %
Total Noen-Current Liabilities 1,007 602 642 625264,374 636,110,352 = E £ =
= = = _=
Current Liabilitics o E & E g =
Loans and Banmowings 133 33,806,441 39,812,317 44,505,888 g o B 5 B
Provisions 25 254463014 260,367,610 386,991,388 3 2 £y 2 & f
Trade and Other Payables 26.1 46,398,617 99,753,448 66,979,691 z 5 02 = e
Amounts Due to Related Pantics 27 2,231,320 - - B E ‘.;1’ % E o 'E‘
Total Current Liabilities 336,899 392 199,933,375 498,476,967 3k § g 3 Be W g i = T P
= ] 4 = A A = "6 -]
Total Liabilities 1,364,502,034  1,025,197,749 _ 1,134,587,319 e o - % = s ik et ~ = E g -l
22 @ s £ £ 5@ 3 € £aEys g€ 3%
= = .
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,831,456,383_ 3,382,254,000 _3,416,080,048 a8 = . N gE = 5 s R }Ej % g
[ - =3 = Z =g £ H
The financial staterments are to be read in conjunction with the related notes which form an integral pan of the financial statements of the E E':,J ] o g E u E Sl E o ‘E" E 'f"-n = § §
Company set out on page 8 to 34, The Report of the Independent Auditors i given in page 110 3, = g = S 5 £ B2 B E o 2o g E g »f E w 8 b
. . . 5 = - i ] i~ - = =1 — = = o o
These financial statements were approved by the board of directors and signed on its behall by, E 5 E - = 5 & -E g E,ﬂ’g = ;' = w @ T‘: e E_ A z o 5 E
pu - . - = = 2 = B
Name of the Director Signature [T R = E 2 E é E =328 E 2 &8 B 5 E E = 8 E 3 " £
g M g > 2 ¢ 2352 FES4F pa8E: 3 F O e
[ (3] . T f — LT L=
- AE H 2§ 58t :e3if I BYEE 2td f Of ol
Al Hebeed od & §d 3 g2pF B2S:49 B ogEpE s d s is
M =3 : £5 E 5 33538 $9EEZ 5 8838 5 E 3 H
Whamec! Sutman 25 = « § Fscps £33 3 1 358% fi3 3 g
e o w1 : = B &
g£h £ 2 E ¢ RED R ROB R < <€ EE0 R HOBR < i =8

Tih June 2017




IOUSING BEVELOPMENT OCORPORA TION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JEST DECEMBLER 2015 2005 2014
Mt MYV MY

Casl Flows From Operating Activities

Profin Belore Tax B0,226,434 15781976
Adfusiments for:

Interest Inconse L (151,525,354)  (142,841,673)
Finance Expense L] 314340 Eod 25521046
Drepreciation of Propeny, Flant and Eguipment 12 06,372,593 5,500,076
Amartisstion of lntangible assel 13 720953 -
Depreciation of Investment Properties 14 18,997,527 14,044 847
Lossf{Profit) on Disposal of Property, Flant and Eguipment 7.9 99,218 (2,925)
Loss on Disposal of Investiment Froperies 9 220,000 1410451
Frovision for Impairment Loss on Trade and Other Receivables 18.1, 18,2 14,057 461 11,665,923
Frovision for Impairment Loss on Amounts due from Related Panics 20.1 11,794,229 -
Share of {(Profit)VLoss of Joinl Venlure 15 (446,844) 1,230,697
Write back of Deferred income 7 (8,261,663) -
Dieferred Income realised during the year 24 (6,680,561) {5,984,469)
Provision for future development cost 9 7,411,529 14,164,183
Profit before Working Capital Changes 4,434,486 40,613,152
Changes in

Change in Invenlorics (291,561,179 40903]1,578
Change in Trade and (ther Receivables 7139530 (245170,692)
Change in Amounts Due from Related Partics 40,686,029 3,575,204
Change in Amounts due to Related Pariies 2231320 13,500
Change in Trade and Other Payables (E2.B41,007) 30,011,766
Dreferred Income Recognized 1,604 400 38,181,010
Change in Frovisions (30,765,419} (138,981 ,678)
Cash (Used in)/ Generated from Operations (2719.071,5500 137,273,840
Interest and LC Usance Charges Paid (35,603,513 (19.200,494)
Income tax paid - (25,724,097}
Wel Cash (Used in)’ From Operating Activities (314,685,063) 02349 249
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase and Construction of Froperty, Plant and Equipment 12 (23,673,535) (8.304,406)
Purchase of Intangible assels 13 {3,64%,763) -
Additions to Invesiment propery 14 (360491 307) (97.380,032)
Interest Feccived L 151,525,354 142,841,673
Procesds from Disposal of Property, Flant and Equipment - 4,193
Investment made during the year (508414} -
Met Cash {used in)/ from Investing Activities (241,157,665) 37,161 428
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Laoans repayments during the year {33,505,065) (44,505 800)
Capital Contribution received during the year 215 61,410,000 -
Borrowings during the year 3 459,130,500 .
Dividend paid during the year 224 - (22,100,000}
Met Cash From/ (Used) in Financing Activities 487,035,435 (665, 605, 5T}
Met (Decrease)’ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents {68,807 203) 62,904,787
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 381,206,298 318,301,511
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the cnd of the year 21 312,399,005 381,206,298

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

The financial statements are (o be read in conjunction with the related nodes which form an integral part of the financial
stalements of the Company set outon pege 8 1 34, The Report of the Independent Auditors is given in page 1 1o 3.

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.

REPORTING ENTITY
Housing Development Corporation Limited (the “Company™) is a Company incorporated and
domiciled in the Republic of Maldives since 23" March 2005 as a limited liability Company under

Presidential Decree No. 200537 with its registered ofTice at 3" Floor, HDC Building, Hulhumale',
the Republic of Maldives.

The Government of Maldives holds 100% shares of the Company.

The Government of Maldives has transferred the ownership of Hulhule-Farukolhufushi Lagoon 1o the
Company under the Presidential Decree No, 2005/37 on 23' March 2005,

The main business activily of the Company is 1o reclaim land of Hulhule - Farukolhufushi Lagoon
and to establish infrastructure and to provide residential, commercial and industrial developments for
sale or lease,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards (1FRSs).

(b) DBasis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except assels and
liabilities which are stated as their fair value.

(¢) Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Maldivian Rufiyaa, which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in Maldivian Rufiyaa has been rounded
to the nearest rufiyaa, except for otherwise indicated.

(d) Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and n any
future periods affected. Information about significant arcas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the respective notes.




HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELY)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements, and have been applied consistenily by the Company,

3.1 Transactions in Forcign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Maldivian Rufiyaa at the exchange rate ruling at
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics as at the
reporting date are translated to Maldivian Rufivaa at the foreign exchange rate ruling as at that date.
Foreign exchange differences arising on translations are recognized in the profit or loss.

Mon-monelary assels and liabilities, which are stated at historical cost, denominated in foreign
currencies are translated 1o Maldivian Rufivaa atl the exchange rates ruling at the date of transaction.
Mon monetary assets and liabilities, which are staled at fair value, denominated in foreipn currencies
are translated to Maldivian Rufiyaa at the foreign exchange rates ruling al the dates that the fair value
was determined.

3.2 Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Asseils (Non-derivative)

The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company
becomes a party to 1he contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assel expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contraciual cash flows on the financial assel in a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is
recognized as a separale assel or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presenied in the stalement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounis
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assel and seitle the liability
simultancously.

The Company has the following financial assets (non-derivative):
Receivables
# (Cash and Cash Equivalents
= Available-for —Sale Invesiments
#  Held to maturity Investmenits

Receivables

Receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

Receivables comprise trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties.

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITID
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial Assels (Non-derivative) (Conlinued)

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, bank balances and term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less.

Available-for-sale Investments

Instruments in equity Securities held by the Company are classified as being available-for-sale and
are stated at fair value, with any resuliant gain or loss being recognized directly in equity, except for
impairment losses. When these investments are derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized directly in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Held to Maturity Investmenis

If the Company has the positive intent and ability 1o hold debt securities to maturity, then such
financial asscts arc classified as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognized
initially at fair value plus any direcily attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any impairment losses. Any sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity investments not close (o their maturity would result in the reclassification of all
held-to-maturity invesiments as available-for-sale, and prevent the Company from classifying
investment securities as held-to-maturity for the current and the following two financial year.

(ii) Financial liabilities {Non-derivative)

The Company initially recognizes debt securities issued on the date that they are originated. All other
financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party
to the coniractual provisions of the instrument. The Company derecognizes a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Company has non-derivative financial liabilities such as trade and other payables, amount due to
related parties and borrowings. Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilitics are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(iii) Share Capital
Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity.
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HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUIED)

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIHES (CONTINUELD)
3.3 Property, Plant and Equipment
(i) Recognition and Measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment except freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly atiributable
1o bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalized borrowing costs.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as parl
of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of properly, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and are recognized net within other income in profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred,

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Frechold Buildings & Improvements 20 Years
Furniture and Fittings and Other Equipment 7 Years
Computers and Office Equipment 4 Years
Vehicles and Boats 4 Years
Plant and Machinery 10 Years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate. The charge for the depreciation commences from the month in which the
Property, Plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEL)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

34 Intangible Assets {Continued)

Recognition and Measurement

Other intanpible assets thal are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are
measured al cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses,

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific assel to which it relates.

Amortization

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-linc basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, from the date thal they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the
expecied patlerns of consumpiion of the: future economic benefits embodied in the assets,

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Computer Software COwer 3 Years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

3.5 Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation on investment properties is recognized on a straight line basis over the following
estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated.

Buildings 20 years
Roads and other developments 20 Years

On the disposal of an investment properly, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is charged or credited to the profit or loss,

3.6 Investments in Joint Ventures

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Company has joint control, established by
contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating
decisions, The investment made in joint venture eniities are accounted under the equity method of
accounting,




HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINULELY)
J. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUELD) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A7 Invenlories 3.8 Impairment (Continued)

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition.

Net realizable value is the cstimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

In the case of construction working propress cost includes all expenditure related directly to specific
projects and an allocation of fixed and wvariable overheads incurred in the Company’s confract
aclivities based on the normal operating capacily.

3.8 Impairment

(i) Financial Assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial assel is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred afier the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably,

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables and held-to-maturity invesiment
securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables and
held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. All individually
significant receivables and held-lo-maturity investment securities found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
identified. Receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant
are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables and held-to-maturity
investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account apainst receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be
recognized through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

(ii) Non-financial Assets

The earrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets and inventories (Refer Note 3.6) are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated
each year at the same time.
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(ii) Non-financial Asscls (Contlinued)

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assel’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

3.9 Employee Benefits
(a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which company makes a fixed
contribution.

The company pays 7% fixed contributions to employee provident fund. Contributions are made for
all Maldivian staff members on their last agreed basic salary.

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss when they are due.

(b) Short-term benefits

Short-term employes benefit obligations of the Company are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if  the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.10 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to seitle the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speeific to the liability.

3.11 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent where borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of an asset that

tukes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of
that asset.
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HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORFORATION LIMITED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Jo SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) L SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Interest — Bearing Borrowings 316 Finance Income and Finance Cosits

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interesi-bearing borrowings are stated a1 amortized cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

3.13 Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale or lease of
residential, commercial and industrial developments in the ordinary course of the Company's
aclivities. Revenue is recognized as follows:

(a) Sales of Residential, Commercial and Indusirial Developments

Income from sale of residential, commercial and indusirial developments is recognized when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customers, when the
recovery of the consideration is probable, there is no continuing management involvement and
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(b) Provision of Services

Income from provision of services are recognized in the accounting period in which the service are
rendered by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the acual
service provided as a propartion of the total services 1o be provided. In respect of the amounts
collected for the future services, deferred income would be initially recognized and the revenue
would be recognized over the period of service performed.

{c) Interest Income

Interest income on interest bearing trade receivables is recognized using the effective interest
method. Income is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
apgreements.

{d) Rental Income

Income from lease rent is recognized on straight line basis over the term of the lease period.

3.14 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

The materiality of the events occurring after the reporting date has been considered and appropriate
adjustments and provisions have been made in the financial statements wherever necessary.

3.15 Operating Expenses

All operating expenses incurred in the running of the Company and in maintaining the capital assels
in a state of efficiency has been charged to the profits or loss for the year. Expenses incurred for the
purpose of acquiring, expending or improving assets of a permanent nature by means of which to
carry on the business or for the purpose of increasing the earning capacity of the Company have
been treated as capital expenses.
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Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and trade receivables. Inferest income
is recognized as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings, LC Usance charges and exchange loss.
Borrowings costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assels are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Foreign
currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

3.17 Tax Expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current 1ax and deferred tax is recognized in profit
or loss.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacied at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assels and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the tax rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred iax asseis and liabilities are offsel if there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it no longer probable that the
related tax benefits will be provided.
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HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

4.

DETERMIMNATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilitics, Fair values have been determined for
measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific
to that asset or liability.

Measurcment of Fair Values

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as
far as possible. Fair values are cateporized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows,

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

(i} Trade and other reccivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for
disclosure purposes.

(ii) Financial liabilities (Non-derivative)

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the reporting date. For finance leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to
similar lease agreements.

(iii) Available for Sale Investment

The fair value of equity securities are determined by reference 1o their quoted closing bid price at the
reporting date.

(iv) Held to Maturity Investments
The fair value of held to maturity investment is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,

discounted at the market rate of interest rate at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for
disclosure purposes,

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. NEWSTANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards, amendments o standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning afier 1% January 2016 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those which may be relevant 1o the Company are sel out below. The Company does not
plan to adopl these standards early.

Title Elfective Description Expected adoption date
Date and impact on the
Company
IFRS 9 Annual This IFRS requires that enlity classifies | The Company is asscssing
Financial period its Mnancial assets as subsequently [the potential impact on its
Instruments | beginning on | measured at either amortised cost or | financial siatements
or after 1° fair valve depending on the enlily’s | resulling from the
January business model for managing the | application of IFRS 9.
2018 financial asseis and the coniractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial
assels,
IFRS 15 Annual IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive | The Company is assessing
Revenuc period framework for determining whether, | the potential impact on its
from beginning on | how much and when revenue is | financial slatements
Contract or afier 1* recognized. It replaces existing revenue | resulting from the
with January recognition guidance, including 1AS 18 | application of IFRS 15.
customers 2018 Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction
Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer
Lovalty Programmes.
IFRS 16 Annual IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the | The Company is assessing
Leases period recognition, measurement, presentation | the potential impact on its
beginning on | and disclosures of leases for both | financial statements
or after 1* parties to a lease contract. resulting from the
January application of IFRS 16.
2019.

The following amended or new standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the

Company’s financial statements,

e Clarification of acceptable methods of Depreciation and amortization (Amendments to IAS 16 and

IAS 38)

o Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle,
s Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1).

18




HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMETED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FORTHE YEAR ENDBED 35T DECEMBER 20015

[0

9.1

REVENUE

Sales of Propertics
Fental Income

OTHER INCOME

Maintenance Charpes

Write back of Deferred Income

Profit on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment
Miscellaneous Income

NET FINANCE INCOME

Finance Income

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits

Interest Income on Investments held to maturity
Interest Income on Trade Receivables

Finance Costs

Foreign Exchange Loss
L.C Usance Charges
Interest Expense on Loans

Met Finance Income

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

15 stevied after charging all the expenses including the followings;
Audit Fees

Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Loss on Disposal of Investment property

Provision made for Impairment Loss of “Trade and Other Receivables
Provizion for Impairment Loss of Amount due from Related Parties
Provision for future development of land

Direclors' Remuneration and Fees

Personnel Costs (Note 9.1)

Personnel Costs

Salaries and Wages

Allowances

Contribution for Provident Fund
Medical Expenses

Staff Welfare

Travelling and Visa

19

2015 2014
MVR MVR
66,468,882 404,315,743
81,575,027 75,381,462
148,043,909 479,697,205
2015 2014
MYER MVRE
7,444,147 301,113
8,261,663 E
: 2,925
5,679,932 6,067,142
21,185,742 9,241,840
2015 2014
MVR MVR
7,749,685 14,529,981
25 320 4,200
143,750,349 128,307,492
151,525,354 142,841,673
(1,818,323) -
(9,093,134) =
(22,346,730)  (25,523,066)
(33.258,187)  (25,523,066)
118,267,167 117,318,607
2015 2014
MVR MVR
223,590 185,000
99,218 G
220,100 1,410,451
14,057,461 11,665,923
11,794,229 -
7,411,529 14,164,183
5,110,179 4,312,154
50023021 39,547,320
21,326,545 17,082,867
24578410 19,110,549
1,259,222 616,898
1,249,021 861,259
590,742 781,192
1,019,081 1,094,555
50,023,021 39,547,320

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITEDR
NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 35T DECEMBER 2015

10 TAX EXPFENSE

Current Tax Expense (Mote 10.1)
Deferred Tax Liability Reversed (Note 10.2)
Deferred Tax Assel Recopnized (Node 10.3)

10,1 Reconciliation between Accounting profit and Taxable income;

Profit Before Tax

Apprepate Disallowable Iems
Apgregate Allowable Hems
Tax Free Allowance

Total Taxable Income

Business Profit Tax @ 15%

2015 014
MY MYIL

14,445,305 32,652,690
5 (4,487,545)
(4,807, 180) (6,539,328)

963,135 21,625,821

0,226,434 115,781,976
90,386,053 161,911,697

(73,810,454)  (59,509,033)

(300,000 (500,000)

96,302,033 217,684,640

Mgﬂ-lﬁﬁﬂi 322652&9‘6

In accordance with the provisions of the Business Profil Tax Act No. 5 of 2011, and relevant regulation and
subsequent amendments thereto, the Company is liable for Business Profit Tax al the rate of 15% on its 1axable

income.

10.2  Delerred Tax Liability

Balance as al 15t January
Reversed during the year
Balance as at 3151 December

10.3  Deferred Tax Assel

Balance as at 151 Janvary
Recognized during the year
Balance as al 3151 Decembxs

Deferred fax Assel is attributable to the following;

20158 2014
MYE MVR
’ 4,487,545
- {4,487,545)
015 014
MYV MYVIR
6,539,328 2

4,207,180 6,539,328

11,346,508 6,539,328

31015 317122014
Temporary  Tax Effect  Temporary — Tax Effect
Difference Difference
MVR MYVR MYVR MVR

Froperty, Plant and Equipment 9. 702,802 1,455,420 4,608,451 6Y1,206E
Iniangihle Assets (486,635) [72,995) - s
Investment Propertics (3B, 257.625) (5,73%,644)  (35,423,296) (5,313,494)
Provision for Impainment Loss 37,430,051 5,604,508 - -
Fair value change of Investment (250,000) (37,5000 - .
Provision for Land Development Costs 67,504,792 10,125,719 74,410,362 11,161,554

75,643,385 11,346,508

43,595,517 6,539,123

11 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluled carnings per share is based on profit for the year attributable to ordinary
sharcholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares owstanding during the year and calculated as fol lows:

Profit for the Year - MYR

Weighted Average Mumber of Shares
Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share - MVR
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015 W14

70,588,309 94,156,153
44,200,000 44,200,000
160 213




Taotal

2014

MVER
2078948
8.304.406

L

Total

015

MVR
£0.242.947
25.673.535

Capital
Waork in
Progress

MVR
771616
16,986,998

Plant and
Machinery
MYR
15,851,382
5,320,931

Furniture,
Fittings and
Other
Equipment
MWVR
7422411
1,038,477

55,970

& Boats
MVR

Vehicles
12,763,004

Computer
and Office
Equipment
MVR
10,448 502
2094352

Freehold
32,986,032
176,807

Buildings &
Improvements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Additions during the year

As at 13t January
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TRCUISISG DUV ERT O PORATION LIMITED
MOVUES T4 THE FINANCIAL STATEAVER IS (CUENTINE R

FORB TN WEAM EMIEEI 25T DECENMBER 201%

15

151

6.1

17.1

172

173

18.1

182

18.3

INVESTAMERNT IR JOINT VENTURE OONTIMUE)
Tnvestment in Jaind Venture {Condinsed)

As per the Jaist Ventere Agreement dased 15h July 2000, the Campany balds the gt w0 scquae 2550000 oadnary shares of Prubaa-HIH Homsang Private
Limited a1 the raie of MYR Y- cach which represents 200% of the shuehiabdmg of the Company As ag the cpoting, date, the Congany has soguied
127500 gedinary shoees at the rate of MYE 100 cach which sepaeant 200 of the Iuued Shave Capatal of Proksa- 000 Housang Privase Limised

Suranaarized Fimanceal lnfermation af Joinl Vesture IS Jnang
MVR MVE

Total Asseis ] 3K Gl 60,149, 3%1

Toaal Liakulnisen [3T7.641) {1.632.639)

Mdaf agertt | 1NRG) (), Bl 97T AR, 120,752

Company's share of nol asscts (10%) 12,192,194 10,745,250

Heeawlis from dhe operations for the year crafod

Profit{Loss) aficr Tas 2,234,220 (6,253, 480)

INVESTMENT AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

Saaie Tradmg Organizatien Fle (Mele 146.1) 1,250,000 1, CHI0, OOHY
State Trading Organizsiion '

Bealance as an 151 Janwary 1 00, Doy 950,000
Change in the fnis vahse dusing the year 150 000 50,000
Bakince as a1 3051 December 1,250,000 10400, 0K

The Comgary has imvesied in 2,500 ordirary shares of Stae Tradsng Organizaton Phe on ik Jasuary 2000 a1 the e of MYR 400/ cach, The Marked
Value of & share &5 at 3158 Decamber 7015 was MVE 3000 (2014 : MVE 4005) per share

INVESTMENT HELD TO MATURITY FLI B 104
MVE MVER
Howsieg Developmest Finascing Corporaion Ple (HDFC) (Note 1T.2) S0 000 S0, 000
Imvestment im Treasury balls (Wete 17.3) 2 AGRAL -
3, 6E AN 500, 000
Amnalysis
Mon-curreml SO0, Doy 500, D00
Cusrent 2808414 -
3348,414 00, 000

The Comparry has imvested in 1,000 listed [slamdz bands issued by HOFC at the rate of MVE 5005 cach for which HDFC has alloted the respecied honds
an 27ih Janury 2004, The profit i payable in every six menths from dale of allotment, anial maturity {10 years). The prodis will be sharcd bevween Subuk

HOUSING DEVELOFMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
MOVTES TOCUHE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS (CONTPINULLY

FOMRTHE YEAR ENDED 35T DCEMBER 2015

M4
MYV
(Hestated)

127,327,954
§7.340,389

14 INVENTORIES 2015
MVR
Inventaorics 460,547,365
Work in Progress 1,521,933
Raw matenials Inveniorny 387,126
462,456,424

184,674,343

191 The additions during the year includes cost incurred for dredping and coastal proicetion of Hulhumale' lagoon

which is inclusive of MWVE 1,653,194/ as horrowing cost capitalisation.

19.2  Land value equal to 125% of initial loan of MVR 6,141,987/~ has been mortgaged with Housing Development

Finance Corporation Ple for the loan obtained as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial siatements

193 Government of Maldives (“GoM™) has transfemed 1,000 construeted housing units to HDC a1 free of charge during
the year ended 3151 December 2013 with cerlain condilions disclosed in note 22.5 o the financial statements. The
Company has recognized the housing unils as inventory for a value of USE 70,500/~ cach converted a (he rate of

MVR 15.42/- per 1 USS.

odder {Fabh gl Mal) and HOFC {Musdarib) o1 8 me of 63% and 33% respectively,
Imvestment in treasury bill camizs e ioterest rate of 4.6% per anmum and materes withan one year,

THADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES s LU E|
MVE MVHE
Hen-lsterest Bearing Trade Receivables T2 RA5ROY 57498208
Interest Beasing Trade Receivables 1578299 435 1,964,232 230
1,951,143, ml,'nﬁ.“?
Less - Prowision for Impainment Loss on trede recenvables (Node 18.1) (37,430,051} 2T A0G,
1,913,713,207 1.994,315,378
Prepayments and Advances 136020016 145,676,534
Oibver Receivables 13987122 I0EED, 195
Less : Provision for lmgairment Loss on other receivables (Note 18.2) (4,032,475 -
1,059,587 566 2,130,833,157
Mon-cusment (Mote 18.3) 1,715,346,619 LB, 736,412
Curresd 344,341,247 327,148,745
Totsl LSRR T TS0 EES, T5T
Provision for lmpakrment Lo - Trade Reecivibibes
Balanee &8 at 150 Januany 2T A0S 0G5 15,719, 146
Provision made during the Yo 10,024 982 10,645 923
Balance as al 3131 Decembaor IT A0 051 37,405,068
Prevision for Inpairment Loss - Otker Receivables
Provision made during the year 4032479
Balance a5 a1 315t December 4034 T
Analysis of Hon-Curront Interest Bearing Trade Receivabibes
Less than two yeard 153,565,811 268,026,631
More than two years less than five yeans 0,957,643 i47 BB6, 407
Mare than five years VATOB 9,085 1,407,825,374
1715346619 1,823, 716,412

n

0 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED MPARTIES 015 2004
MVR MVR
Ministry of Islamic AfTairs 2,142 479 .
Ministry of Finance and Treasury 58,971,146 108,426,345
Maldives Water & Sewerage Company Limiled 1,473 488 .
Ministry of Housing & Infrastructure 4,221,726 -
Maldives Ports Limited 81,477 =
67,740,316 108,426,345
Less: Provision for Impaimment Loss (20.1) (11,794,229)

20.1

21

1.1

55,946,087 108,426,343

Frovision for Impairment Loss

Provision made during the year 11,794,229 -
As at 3151 December 11,794,229 .
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 015 2014
MVR MVIR
Cash in Hamd 31,364 123,035
Balances with Banks 252,405,187 155,843,884
Short Term Deposils 59,902 454 225,239,379

312,399,005 81,206,298

Invesiment in treasury bill carries an interest rate of 4.6% per annum and matures within one month.
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HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTIES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMEN TS (CONTINUED]
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22

2.1

212

123

22.4

1L.5
12.5.1

22.5.2

23

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital
Authorized share capital comprises of SUOU0, (2004 © SO000,000) ordinery shares of MR 105 cach.

Issucd and Fully Paid Share Capital
The Issued and Tully paid share capila] comprises of 44,200,000 (2014 - 44 200,000) ordinary shares ol MYIR 10
el

Share Premium

This share premivm represents the capital comtribution by the sharcholders in excess of the nominal value of the
issued share capital,

Dividends and Voling Righis
The helders of ordinary shares are entitled o receive dividends as declared Trom time o time and are entitled 1o
one vole per share al sharcholders meetings of the Company.

The Board of Directors has not declared any dividend for the Year ended 315t December 2005 ( 2014 : MVR
220100,000/- 3.

Advance for Share Capital

The Comipany has entered in to an agreement with the Government of Maldives ("GoM”) for sale and (ransfer of
rights and obligations over housing units being developed under the Government Housing Scheme and as per the
agreement, the GoM has transferred 1,000 constructed housing unils worth of MR 1L087.110,000/- 1o the
Company during the year. Value of the housing units have been determined as USE 70,500/~ each unit converted m
the rate of 15.42/-,

As per the agreement, the Company should;

) construct 2 school buildings in Hulhumale™ at its own cost.

f) transfer 25 housing unils free of charge including the land 1o specified individuals by 1he Ministry of Housing
and Environment (*MHE").

e} any surpluss funds generated from the housing units transferred shall be invested by Housing and Housing
Related capital expenditure.

The Company has initially recognized the value of the housing units as Advance for Share Capilal MVR

774,873,413/~ after deducting the expenses to be incurred by the Company on fulfilling the above obligations during

the year ended 3151 December 2013,

During the vear ended 315t December 2013, the Company has recognized a liabilily of MVR 5,944,040/ in relation
to the GST payable on veshifahi Mats. However, pursuant to the ruling issued by tax authority in relation to the
exemption of GST on housing fats, the remaining unupaid amount of lisbility amounting 1o MYR 3,456,469/~ has
been recognized as Advance for Share Capital during the year ended 31t December 2014,

The Company has charged MYR 10,622,730/~ against Advance for share capital in relation 1o the revisions of the
estimate in provision for the remaining school construction which is an obligation to be fulfilled by the Company as
part of grant of Veshifahi flais during the year ended 31st December 2013, Further, the Comapny has made an
additional provision for the sonstruction defects of Veshifahi flats amounting to MVR 11,725,481/~ during the year
and the advance for share capital has been deducted by the same amount. The net results of the above transactions
amounting 1 MVE 18,841,742/ has been recognized under advance for share capital as al 3131 December 2015,

During the year ended 315t December 2015, the Company has received LISS 4,000,0000- (MVE 61, 410,000/-) as
contribution for share capital from Governmient fior which the shares have not been alloted as at reporting date.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS 015 2014
MVR MVR

As at 1st January 414,353,722 452,537,040

Add: Interest acerued during the year 22,346,730 25 523,066

Add: Borrowing during the year 459,130,500 -

Less : Repayments during the year (36,766,133) {64,706,384)

Ag at 31t December B39.064.819 414,353,722
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231

3.2

3.3

234

235

3.6

LOBANS AND BORRBOW INGS (CONTINUED )

Sources ol Finunce PR RIE]
MYR AV
Mimistey of Finonee and Treasury (Node 23.4) 2032376506  IT0,238.120
Ministey of Finance and Treasury - Basic Flats down payment boan (Nate 23.5) 2,371,925 2,585,725
Ministry of Finance and Treasury = 504 Housing project logan | (Mote 23.6) 63 A9 374 L8 270,35T
Minisiry of Finance ard Trersury - 504 Nousmg project loan-1] (Note 23.6) 06,535630 113,581 824
Hoasing Development Finance Corporation Ple - asic flais (Note 23.7) 4248878 4538586
Housing Development Finarce Corporation Ple - 504 Down Payment (Nate 23.8) ! 5131110
Bank of Ceylon . Phage 1l Dredging Loan (Note 23.9) 459130300 -

BI04 RIS 414,355,722

Mon Curreni

Secured Loans:

Housing Development Finanee Corporation Ple - Basie Flats 3,904,280 4 248 878
Bank of Ceylon - Phase 11 Dredging Loan 459,130,500 .
Unsecured Loans:

Ministry of Finance ond Trensary IR3I07 269 199753383
Ministry of Finance and Treasury - Basic Flats down payment loan 2,162,125 2,373,925
Ministry of Finance and Treasury - 504 Housing project loan - 1 58A02 692 62,5M,213
Ministry of Fisancs and Treasury - 504 Housing projest loan -1 98,551,502 105,590,906

205,258 378 374 541 405

The repayment of non-curreni liabilities are scheduled as follows:

Mare than one year, less than twa years 2B 418,129 28385814

More than two years, less than three years £2 421,005 28415540
More than three years, less than five years 242053020 56,896,109
BMoce than five years 452,366,204 260,845,942
BO5,258,378 374,541,405
Current
Ministry of Finance and Treasury 20,169 237 20484737
Ministry of Finance and Treasury - Dasie Flais down payment loan 21 1,800 211,800
Minisiry of Finance and Treasury - 304 Housing project loan-] 5,006,082 5,702,044
Minisiry of Finance and Treasury - 304 Housing praject loan - 11 7,984,124 7992918
Housing Develapment Finance Corporation Ple - Basic flats 344 598 289,708

5,131,110

Housing Development Finance Corparation Fe - 504 Down Payment loan .
33,806,441 39812317

Minisiry of Finance and Treasury

The Company has obiained an unsecured loan of MVR 332,922 295/ from Minsstry of Finasnce and Treasury al an interest rate
of 6% per 2nnum on 2610 October 2002, This loan is to be repaid in 40 semi = annual installments of MYR 11,013,278
commencing on the first available payment date falling 5 years after the: first withdrawal of loan proceeds.

Minisiry of Finance and Treasury - Basic Flats down payment loan

The Company has obtained unsecured loan of MVR 4,236,000/~ from Ministry of Finance and Treasury at an inferest rate of 6%
per annum on 6th March 2007, Loan is to be repaid in 240 equal manthly installments of MVE 17650/ commencing fram Gih
March 2007,

Ministry of Finance and Treasury - 504 housing project loan - 1

The Company has oblained an unsecured loan of MVE 83,432 418/ from Ministry of Finance and Treasury at an interest of
6.5% per annum, for the S04 housing project. Interest will thereafier be reset at 182 day Treasury Bill rate prevailing on 124
October 2012, plus 1.5% for administrative charges. The loan is to be repaid in 40 equal semi - annual installments COmMMEnEing
from 15t April 2011,

Ministry of Finance and Treasury - 504 housing praject loan- 11

The Company has obtained an unsecured loan of MVE 140,787 8761 from Ministry of Finance and Treasury al an interest rate
of six months LIBOR + 3% per annum for the $04 housing project. The loan is to be repaid in 40 equal seni annual installments
commencing from 158 April 2011

26
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23 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUER
237 Nouwsing Development Fimance Corpariatiaa M,
The Company has obiained a loan of MVE 6,141,987/ fiom Housig Developrsest Fimance Cosporation 1Me o |3ih Jansary 2005 at an
inlerest rale of 7% up fo 3151 October 2000 and 9% from 151 November 2006 Laan 15 w be repard in 209 cqual monthly anstallments of
WVE 572020 commencing afier 21 montbs prace period. This Inan is secured By a lind wonh 123% of the mital loan amount
238 NMowsing Development Finance Corporation Ple - S04 Dowi Payment Laan
The Company hod obtained a loan of MW $0,000 000/ from Howsing Develapment Finonce Caorparation Ple o 10 June H00 a8 an
interest rate of 11.75% per ansum, However, this boan has been fully setiled during the year ended 31t December 2005
239 Bankof Ceylon - Phase 11 Dredging Loan
The Company has obtained a loan of USS 30,000, 0000 from BRank of Coylen wnder LC Usance [acility for whech the Hank wall be
converting the facility into loan on 2(ih May 2006 which is conssdered 10 be the dishursement date for the Joan wiich is the end of the 1.C
usance facility period, The Lean is subject 1o a grace persod of 2 years and will be repaid in 60 installments where as ke kan carries an
interest rate of 8.5%
This Loan is sscured by,
(1} Income from the 1,000 units of 3 bedroom Nats, spread among 64 blocks on a land area of approximately 80,678 square meters. The
development value of the 1000 units (excluding land value) is approximately US$ 77 000 000V- and the recarrent incame from these units
te HDC {the Bomower) is approximately USS 400,000 per month. As added securily, the Borrower shall also escrow pan of the curment
income from these properties ta the Lenders to buikd up a repaymend bufTer prios tothe dishussement of the Loan
(2) Frechold land of approximately 49,845 square meters (City Center Park Land) at an estimated value of USS 14 000,000/
(3) Frechokd lamd of approximately £924 squarc meters (Waterfiont land) ot an estimated value of USS 16,000,000
24 DEFERRED INCOME 015 014
MVR MV
Ralance as at 158 January 134,454 504 102,257,963
Recogmzed duning the year 1,604,400 38,181,000
Realized during the Year (6,680,561) (5,984 469
Write back of Deferred Income (£.261.663) -
Balance oz sl 315t December 121116680 134454504
M1 Analysis of Deferred Income
Outsianding Collection Costs (MNote: 24.2) 25,000 804 26,331,797
Fulire Maintenance Fes (Nofe: 14.3) Q6,114,876 108,062,707
121,116,680 134,454 504
4.2 Ouistanding Collection Costs
The defermed income represents the amounts charged from customers for the future loan recavery cost in relation 1o propesties seld under
installment basiz. The deferred income is recopmized over the settlement period,
24.3  Future Maintenance Fee
The Deferred income represents the amounts charged from ihe customers for the future Maintenance of Propertics sold under veshifahi
project and 504 flats. The deferred income is recopnized over the period of 20 10 25 years.
15 PROVISIONS 015 2014
MYE MYR
(Restated)
Provisiom for Land Develapment Costs (Node 25.1) 67,504,792 71762313
Warranty provision for Construction defects (Nete 25.2) 431,765 323 32,613,300
Prowision for future construction cost of two schools (Note 25.3) 143,192 899 149,991,997
254 463 014 260367610
251 Land Development Cost comprises the provision meade for cost o be incurred in feiure for develapment of Hulhumale! [sland i respect of
the land plots sold by the Company.
252 The Company has recopnized warmanty provision for rectification of construction defeets of 1,000 housing units constructed under
Weshifahi project. Dased on engineer's estimates, an initial provision kad been recopnized at 3% of the total building value of the Housing
units at the time of transfer of housing units to the Company, Further, during the year ended 3151 December 2015, the Company has done a
re-assessment of the warranly provision with the engineer's assessment on the construction defects. Based on the sssessment, the
management and has made s additional warranty provisien of MVR 11,725,481/ which is recognized apainst the Advance for ghare
capital.
253 The Government of Mabkdives (“GoM") has transferred 1,000 constructed howsing units to HDC at a free of charge during ihe year with

cerfain conditions including that the Company should constraet 2 school buildings in Hulhumale'. The total cost of futere construction of
twa schools is estimated as MVE 245,112,101/- including the land value as ot 31st December 2013, The Company has Completed the
Construction of 1 schanl huilding and handed over to the Government, Accordingly, the estimated cost of fiture construction of the
remaining schoal is MVER 143 192 8997,

7

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYARLES s 4
MVH AIVH
Mwnicipal Tax Fayahle 00,306,522 106,475,789
Accruals, Deposits and Oiher Payables 41,734,641 108, 406,391
Income Tax Payable 15,585,k 8 1,139,713
147 626,201 216,008,413
6.1 Analysis of Trade and Other Pavables
Payable Afler one year 101,227 584 116,268 465
Paynble within one year 16,398,617 LTS3 A48
147,626,201 216,021,913
Analysis of Trade and (Mher Payables
Payahle Aficr one year
Lease Deposits 10,921,062 9860350
Municipal Tax Payablz 90,306,522 103,408,114
101,227,584 116,268 465
Payable within one year
Accruals and Other Payables 0,813,579 98,613,715
Income Tax Payable 15,585,038 1,139,733
46,398,617 99,753 448
37 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES w1s 2014
MYVR MVR
{Restated)
nfinistry of Fimance and Treasury 2,231,320
28 UNRECOGNIZED REVENUE ON DEVELOPMENT AND SALE OF PROPERTIES AGREEMENTS
The Company enters inte Agreements with third pantics in order to ransfer davelopment and sale rights of the plats of lands of
Hulhumale' for a total consideration of MVR 177,785,382/, According to the agrecrments, the third panly acquirers obtains the
right 1o develope and sell residential units developed on thasc plots of lainds 1o the prospective Maldivian buyers and 12 instruc
the Company 1o exccute the transfer of ownership of these plots of lands 1o the buyers as specified by the Acquirer. In some of
the agrcements, the consideration will be paid upon the sale of ihe residential properties by the developer to the third parfies
whereas in some of the agreements, a part of the total consideration would be seitled by handing over he commercial units of
the building which will be developed by these third partics not depending upon the sale of the properties and the remaining
consideration would be setiled upon the sale of the propertics developed by the same parlies. However, the managenent has
not recognised the revenue of such ransactions based on the considesation of the commercial units,
29 COMMITMENTS
29,1 The Company has entered in to a iri parly agreement with Ministry of Finance and Treasury and Ministry of Howsing and
Environment on 22nd February 2012. According te the agreement HDC committed te purchase of 196 housing units at the rate
of 1SS 725004 from the Kargwal 185G Developers Privatc Limited, If the nominated purchasers identified by the
Government of Maldives are unable ia secure morigage finance. Total commitment of the Company is amounting to MVR
219,118,200 a5 of the reporting dale.
30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial Risk Management
(i} Overview
The Company has exposure 1o the following risks from s use of financial instrunents:
= Credit risk
® Liguidity rigk
= Market risk

This rote presents information zbout the Company's exposure 10 each of the above risks, the Company's objectives, policics
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.
(i) Risk management framework

The Board of Direciors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk managermen
framework.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUEID)

Financial Risk Management (Cantinucd}

i) Credit Risk

Credil risk is the nisk of financial loss 1o the Company if 8 costomer [ils i meet s contractual obligations, and arises
principally from ihe Company's receivables from customers and relaled partics.

Exposure to credii risk

The carrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum eredil exposure. The maxinwm exposure 1o credit sk at the
repariing dale was:

Carrying Amouni
31712015 RSO e )
MVR MVRE
Trade and (iher Receivables 1,565,130, 380 2,032,613,642
Held 1o Maturity Investments 33684104 S00,000
Amounts Due from Related Pariics 67,740,316 108,426,345
Balances with banks 312,367,641 361,083,263
2,348,606,751 2,522.623.250

The Company’s exposure 1o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characieristics of cach customer, There is no
conccntration of credil risk geographically.

The manogement has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for
creditworibiness before the Company's standisd payment and  delivery terms ond conditions are offered. The Company
establishes an allowance for impairment that represents ils estimate of incuried losses in respect of rade and other reccivables.
The main compenents of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates 1 individually significant exposures, and a
collective loss component established for companics of similar assets in respect of losses thal have been incurred but not yel
identified, The collective loss allowance is delermined based on historical data of payment slatistics for similar financial

assels

Tmpairment Losses 31/12/2015 I20n4

Trade snd Other Receivables Grings Impairmeni Giross Impairment
MVRE MVR MYVR MVR

The zping of trade and other receivables at the reporiing daie was:

Meither past due nor impaired 1,884 868,897 - 1,895,519,131 $

Less than one year 26,866,392 7,630,040 49,819 321 6,758,174

One to three years 32.486,178 16,328,970 GENOL51T 5.ET6,E14

Miore than (three years less than five Years 6,086 488 3,261,095 8,922 945 2,834 854

More than five years 14,222.425% 14,222 425 10,230,727 8,935,227

Total 1.065,130,380 41,462,530  2,032,613,642 27,405,069

Amounts Due from Related Parties

Mot Past Due 6,626,691 < - .

Less than one year 2,142,479 - k 3

One 1o three years 58,971,146 10,794,229 108,426,345 -

Total 67,740,316 11,794,229 108,426,345 X

Cirand Tonal 2,032 870,690 33,256,759 2,141 039 987 27,405,069

The movement in the provision for impaimment in respect of irade and odber receivables is grven im Mole 181 and 18.2 (o the
financial stalements.

The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are oulstanding for less than one year are still collectible, based on
historic payment hehavior. Based on historic default rates, the Company believes that, no further provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of trade and other receivables outstanding as at the reporting date.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND KISK MANAGEMENT (UONTINUEID
(iv) Liguidity Risk

Licuidity risk is the nisk that the Company will encounter dilficalty i mceting the obligations sssocated with its Tnancial halulities
that are setiled by delivering cash or another financial asset The Company's apgroach 1o managimg hquadaly 15 1o ensuie, 2% G as
possibbe, that it will always have sullicient liquidity 1o meet its hobalies when due, without incurring, anaceeplable losses or risking,
domage to the Company’s reputation.

The fellowing: are the conraciaal maturities of fnancial habalities as at the yvear esd

J1st December 2015 Carrying n-12 1-2 15 More ihan
Ammsunt Maonths Years Years 5 ycars
MVE MYVH MVH MVR MVH
Financial Liabilities {Non- Derivative)
Trade and Cther Payables 132 041,163 30813,57% 100 227 584 - -
Loans arnd Borsowings 839 (54,819 33 806,441 JRAIBN39 324,474 025 452,366,214
Tatal 971,105,082 64,620,020 129,605,723 32AATANZS 452,366,214
F1si December 2004 (Resiated) Carrying 0-12 1-2 1.5 More Than
Amouni Maonihs Years Years Syears
MVE MYR MR MVRE MVR
Financial Liabililics {Nnn— Dtl‘i'n'lﬂ\‘-t}
Trede and Other Fayalbles 214,882,180 9BGI3,TIS 116,268 465 - =
Loans and Borrowings 414353723 IR NT 28 385 B14 85,311 645 260,843,942
6I9. 235902 138420032 144,654 279 85311 647 260,843,942

It is not expected that the cash Nows included in the maturity analysis could accur significantly earlier, or at significanily different
amounts

(v) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company’s
incame or the value of its holdings of fimancial instruments. The abjective of market risk management is to manage and control
markel risk exposures within zcceplable parameters, while optimizing the returm

{a) Interesi Rate Risk

Frofik:
Al the repoming date, e interest rate profibe of the Compamy's interest - bearing financial instromem was
Carrying Amount
Jinzzms 3zz014
Variahle Hate Instromenis MVR MVR
Financial Lubdlities - Loans and Bocrowings 106,535,636 113,583 824
e e e ——— el
Financial Assets - Held to Malunity Investments 3,368,414 500,000
Fiwed Rate Instruments
Financial Liabilities - Loans and Borrowings 732,529,183 300,769, 898
Finarcial Assets - Trade and Other Receivables 1,878,297 455 1,964,232 239
Financial Assets - Short Term Deposits 59,902 454 225,239,379

1,938, 199509 2,189.471,618

Sensitivity analysis

A change of 100 basis point in interest rates ai the reporiing date would have increased / (decreased) profit by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all ather varizbles, in particular foreign curmency rales, remain constant

Increase/ Effect an Frofit
(decrease) in or loss MYR
hasis poinis
IVI200S
Yarisble rate instraments +100 1,088,188
100 (1,028,188)
3112004
Wariable rate insiruments +100 1,173,186
=100 (1,173,180)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(v) Market Risk (Continued)

(b) Currency Risk

Exposure to currency risk

The Company’s exposure 1o foreipn currency risk is as follows based on notional amounts:

22015 3204
Uss uss
Cash and Cash Equivalenls 327,637 1,133,548
Trade and Other Receivables 1,750,000 1,750,000
Lean and Borrowings (30,000,000} -
Ciross stalement of financial position exposure {27,922,363) 2,883,548

The following significant exchanpe rate were applied during the year:

Average Rate Reporting Date Spot Rate
2015 2014 322015 322014
LSS 1 MRET. 15.42 1542 1542 1542

Sensitivity Analysis

A strengthening (weakening) of the MVER, as indicated below, against the forcign currencies as at the end of
cach period would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below.

311272015 3111272014
Strengthening  Weakening  Strengthening  Weakening
MVR MVR MVE MVR
US$ (1% Movement) 4,305,628  (4,305,628) (144,643) 444,641

EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING DATE

Mo circumstances have arisen since reporting date which require adjusiments to / or disclosure in the financial
slalements.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors of the Campany is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial
statcments.
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Accounting Classifications and Fair Values

h

r value hierarchy. It does not include fair

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial lizbilities, including their levels in the fai

value information far fnaneial nssets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrving amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair value

Level 2

Carrying amount

Total

Level 3

Level 1

Other financial Total

Loans and

Available-

Held to

31st December 2015

liahilities

receivables

for-sale

Investments

Maturity

MYR

MVR MYR

MVR

MVR

MVR

MVR

MVR

Financial assets measured at fair

value

1.250.000

1,250.000

1,250,000

1,250,000

Investments Available-For-5ale

Financial assets not measured at

farr value

1,965,130,380

1,955,130,380

Receivables

3,368,414
67,740,316
312,367,641
2.348,606,751

3363414

Held to Maturity Investments

67,740,316
312,367,541

1.345,238,337

Amounts due from Related Parties

Cash and cash equivalents

3,368,414

Financial liabilities not measured at

fair value

132,041,163
839,064,819
971,105,982

132,041,163
§39.064,819
971,105.982

Trade and other payables
Loans and Borrowings

~1
o
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LT R TR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2015

Name of the Related Helaiionship Natwrcofthe  Amounl Amaini Balance Halaner
Parly 1 ramsactiong Phue fromdita)  Dhee fromd{ i) el s 4 i
nepi asal 36 RESTATEMENT OF ERRORS
2Ms 2014 WN0IS INI2204
— : MYR MVH MVE MR (a) Recognition of revenue of Sale of Land to Prulisa HDC
Mmisiry of Education Gowvernment  Lease Rentals 2,049 BOO 2,973 B00
alliliates Heeeipis {528, 100) (5402505 21260217 14 8T, B0
Minisiry of Health Governmenl  Lease Henials 2198600 2198 600 The Company has entered into a Reciprocal Agreement with Pruksa-HDC Housing Private Limited,
allfiliaics Receipts (453,000) (5088000 1,185,767 129,750 a related party for the transfer of development right of a plot of land for a consideration of MVR
Minisiry of Islamic Allaies  Government  Expense Incurred 2,131,928 2142479 10,551 25,699,876/-. According to the agreement, the Acquiree has obtained the right o sell residential
atacais ikl units developed on the said plot of land to the prospective Maldivian buyers and to instruet the
Maldives Transport and Government  Lease Rentals 1305098 2077010 Company to execute the transfer of common ownership of the said plot of land to the buyers as
Contracting Company Pl alfiliaes Heceipls {2.039.211) {1,040, 063) 326,016 1,060,139 H i Al . .
. ; = specified by the Acquirce. The Company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of’ the
Dibivehi Raajpeype Gullwn Fle  Govemment  Lease Kenlals BE5,5T1 BE5,571 E - 3 : <
aflilites Feceipts (885,571} (1,392,649 {13,500 {13,504} ownership of the land plot to the Acquiree upon executing the Reciprocal Agreement since 19th
Maldives Ports Limited Govemmeni  Leasc Rentals 1174.814 1,074,814 July 2010 and the Company should recognize this transaction as a sale of land during the year
affilliales Receipis (L1814 {LIT4.814) - ended 31st December 2010. However, the Company has initially recognized the total consideration
E"E’:‘i:“""“* 981,477 981477 of MR 25,699,876/- as an advance received and subsequently recognized the revenue when the
on e . . - '
T AR RN ; | Y s legal ownership of e land plots were transferred to the ullimate buyers, amounting 10 MYVR
1EY] [ 1 i Leasi Rentals . b 10183,
e Trading Crganizatson Plc ::'I:':I::::m <l IJ.ME-.:TB} § 20,652,560 1,134,784 10,034,759/~ upto 315t December 2014. However, the above error has now been corrected and the
Ministry of Finance and Government  Expense incurred 544,801 1,174,061 58971146 108426345 comparative figures have been restated accordingly.
Treasury alfiliates Receip (50,000, 000) -
Dividend Faid . (22,100,000 g N
i : (17.121.878) Restated Retained Earnings as at Ist January 2014 MVER
Payments 27892410 45635700  (375,585441)  (404,684.026)
Advance received {15,400,000) . (2,331,320) 3 Retained carnings previously reported 1,003,039,398
Seiilements 13,168,680 : Profit on the transaction 501,211
Prukea - HDU Housing Private  Joinl Venture  Lease Renials 132,720 - - :
Fiind Rk (152.920) Reswated Balance as at 1si January 2014 1,003,540,609
Incoime recopnized 2 _
Maldives Water & Government  Lease Rentals 2,506,229 1,552 B5R
Sewerage Company alfiliates Receipls (2.599,613)  (3,062,950) (2.900) 484 Restated Balances in the Statement of Financial Position
Limited
Expense Incurred 1,423 488 1423488 As at 31st December 2014 2013
on behal f MVR MVR
State Electric Company Government  Lease Reptals 1,739,878 T8I A24 _
Limited affiliates Receipts {1,787,954) {634 348) 81,000 129070 Decrease in Inventories 11,811,955 10,005,672
Ministry of Housing & Goversment  Fxpense Incurred 2.066,817 2,154 505 4221726 2,154,909 Increase in Provision for Land Development Costs 3,351,951 5,158,234
Infrastruciure affilintes on behall

Decrease in Amount due to Related Party 15,665,117 15,665,117

£

Collectively, bul mot individually, significant (ransactions

Government of Maldives is the 100% shareholer of the Company. The Company has transactions with entities dircctly or indirecily
controlled by the Govemnment of Maldives through its authonties, agencics, affiliations and other organizations, collectively refersed 10 0z
povemment entities. The Company has iransactions with ether govemnment related entitics including bul not limited to sales, purchases,
tendering of services, lease of assets and use of public euilities,

34,2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel
The Board of Directors of the Company are the membsrs of the key management personnel, During the year, the Company has paid MVE
4312, 154/ (2014 - MVR 3,550 54 1) as remuneration to the key management persormel and MVR 798,025/ (2014 : MVR 761 613/) a5
fees 1o the Board of Directars

35 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Comparative figuees of the financial stalemenis have been reclassified wherever appropriate to conform with it year's p ation
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